
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
Meeting: TIDWORTH AREA BOARD 

Place: Enford Village Hall, Longstreet, Enford, Wiltshire, SN9 6DD 

Date: Monday 21 July 2014 

Time: 7.00 pm 

 
Including the Parishes of Chute, Chute Forest, Collingbourne Ducis, Collingbourne 
Kingston, Enford, Everleigh, Fittleton, Ludgershall, Netheravon, Tidcombe and Fosbury, 
and Tidworth. 
 

 
The Area Board welcomes and invites contributions from members of the public. 
The chairman will try to ensure that everyone who wishes to speak will have the 

opportunity to do so. 
 

   If you have any requirements that would make your attendance at the meeting easier, 
please contact your Democratic Services Officer. 

 
Refreshments and networking opportunities will be available from 6:30pm.  

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Kevin Fielding (Democratic Services 
Officer), on 01249 706612 or email kevin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
or Mary Cullen (Tidworth Community Area Manager), 01722 434260 or email 
mary.cullen@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
All the papers connected with this meeting are available on the Council’s website at 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114 / 713115. 
 

 
Wiltshire Councillors 

 
Chris Williams  (Chairman) Ludgershall and Perham Down 

Mark Connolly  (Vice Chairman) Tidworth 

Charles Howard 
 

The Collingbournes and Netheravon 
 

 
 
 



 
 

                    Items to be considered Time 

  

1   Chairman's Announcements, Welcome and Introductions 
(Pages 1 - 12) 

15 mins 

 Chairman’s Announcements: 
 

• Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
 

• Mini Recycling Sites 
 

• Garden Waste Consultation 
 

• Clinical Commissioning Group – update 
 

• Army Rebasing - update  
 

 

2   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

3   Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or 
dispensations granted by the Standards Committee. 
  

 

4   Minutes (Pages 13 - 20)  

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on the 19 May 2014.  
 

 

5   New structure for the provision of Youth Services by Wiltshire 
Council.  

30 mins 

 Cllr Laura Mayes - Cabinet Member for Children’s Services, to 
outline the new structure for the provision of Youth Services 
provided by Wiltshire Council.  
  

 

6   SPICE Time Credits  20 mins 

 Nick Bird from SPICE, to outline preparations for the rollout of 
Time Credits for the Tidworth community area.  
 

 

7   Strategic Community Operations Board (SCOB) - update  10 mins 

 Rachel Goff – Campus Delivery Manager, Wiltshire Council to 
update.  

 



8   Community Area Transport Group (CAT-G) - update  5 mins 

 Cllr Mark Connolly to update. 
  

 

9   Updates from Town and Parish Councils, the Police, the 
Army, NHS, TCAP and other Partners (Pages 21 - 22) 

20 mins 

 To receive any updates. 
  

 

10   Community Area Grants  5 mins 

 To determine any applications for Community Area Grants. 
 
Grant application packs for the Community Area Grants Scheme 
are available from the Community Area Manager or electronically 
at: 
 
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboa
rdscommunitygrantsscheme.htm. 
  

 

11   Date of Next Meeting and Evaluation  5 mins 

 The next meeting of the Tidworth Area Board will be on the 22 
September 2014 at the Memorial Hall, Ludgershall. 
  

 

12   Close   

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Chairman’s Announcements 
 

 

Subject: Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

Officer Contact Details: 

Georgina Clampitt-Dix, 
Head of Place Shaping, Economic Development & 
Planning 
01225 713472 
georgina.clampitt-dix@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Weblink: www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityinfrastructurelevy  

Further details available: CIL@wiltshire.gov.uk  

 
Summary of announcement: 
 

On 23 June 2014, Wiltshire Council is submitting the Wiltshire Council Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Draft Charging Schedule for independent examination. On this 
date, a Statement of Modifications, which sets out proposed changes to the CIL Draft 
Charging Schedule, is also being published for a four week period of consultation. 
 
CIL is a charge that local authorities can place on new development to help fund 
infrastructure needed to support growth. 
 
A note containing more information on CIL, including how to comment on the 
Statement of Modifications and the next steps, is attached as an appendix to this 
Announcement.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



Page 2



WILTSHIRE AREA BOARDS 
 

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY FOR WILTSHIRE - CONSULTATION  
 

(JUNE 2014) 
 
 
1. What is the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)? 
 
1.1 Wiltshire Council is preparing a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charging schedule. This 

is a charge that local authorities in England can place on development in their area. The 
money generated through the levy will contribute towards the funding of infrastructure to 
support growth. The Charging Schedule will need to strike an appropriate balance between 
contributing to funding infrastructure and not putting development across Wiltshire at risk.  

 
2. Why has Wiltshire decided to implement the Levy? 
 
2.1 The Government has restricted the ability of local authorities to pool funding for off-site 

infrastructure through existing section 106 agreements (or developer contributions). It 
considers that this new tariff-based approach provides the best framework to fund 
infrastructure in a fair and transparent manner. CIL will provide ‘up front’ certainty about how 
much developers will be expected to contribute. 

 
3. How will money from CIL be spent? 
 
3.1 CIL is designed to contribute towards bridging the ‘funding gap’ between the total cost of new 

infrastructure required to support development and the amount of funding available from other 
sources. Wiltshire Council’s Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) identifies a range of physical, 
community and ‘green’ infrastructure projects that will be required to support the level of 
development as set out in the Wiltshire Core Strategy. Informed by the IDP, a list (known as 
the Regulation 123 list) will identify and prioritise which infrastructure projects will be eligible 
to receive money from CIL. The Government confirmed last year that local communities will 
directly benefit from CIL. Town and parish councils will receive 15% of CIL raised in their 
area, or 25% if an adopted neighbourhood plan is in place. 

 
4. Submission of the Wiltshire CIL Draft Charging Schedule and consultation on 

proposed modifications 
 
4.1 The Council has undertaken two previous consultations on the Wiltshire CIL Charging 

Schedule, which sets out the amount of CIL to be charged on different types of new 
development. The first consultation, on a ‘Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule’ (October 
2012), took place between October and November 2012. Comments received informed a 
‘Draft Charging Schedule’ (January 2014), upon which the Council consulted between 
January and February 2014. 

 
4.2 On 23 June 2014, the Council is submitting the ‘Wiltshire CIL Draft Charging Schedule’ 

(January 2014) for an independent examination.  
 
4.3 The Council is proposing to make modifications to the Wiltshire CIL Draft Charging Schedule. 

These have been informed by comments received during the last consultation and are set out 
in a ‘Statement of Modifications’, which is being submitted alongside the CIL Draft Charging 
Schedule. 

 
4.4 The Council is now inviting comments on the Statement of Modifications from 23 June until 

5pm, 21 July 2014. 
 

How to comment 
 
4.5 Comments can be made, using the response form, via: 
 

Page 3



• Online consultation portal: http://consult.wiltshire.gov.uk/portal 

• Email: CIL@wiltshire.gov.uk 

• Post: Spatial Planning, Economic Development & Planning, Wiltshire Council, County 
Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 8JN. 

 
4.6 The CIL Draft Charging Schedule, Statement of Modifications, associated evidence and 

information on how to make comments will be published on the Wiltshire Council website at 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityinfrastructurelevy, from 23 June 2014. 

 
4.7 Hard copies of the documents are available at Council libraries and the main Council offices 

in Chippenham (Monkton Park), Devizes (3-5 Snuff Street), Salisbury (27-29 Endless Street) 
and Trowbridge (County Hall) during normal opening hours. 

 
4.8 If responding by post or email, response forms are available from libraries and the main 

Council offices or the website. 
 

Requesting the right to be heard by the independent examiner 
 
4.9 Organisations and individuals responding may request the right to be heard by the examiner 

in relation to these modifications. A request to be heard by the examiner must be made in 
writing to Wiltshire Council by 5pm 21 July 2014, via the above means. Anyone requesting to 
be heard should indicate whether they support or oppose modifications and explain why. 

 
4.10 Please note that the right to be heard at this stage of the process applies only in relation to 

the modifications being consulted on. 
 

What happens next? 
 
4.11 All comments received and a copy of each request to be heard in relation to these 

modifications will be forwarded to the examiner. 
 
4.12 Requests to be heard may be withdrawn at any time before the opening of the examination by 

giving notice in writing to Wiltshire Council. 
 
4.13 Details of the time and place at which the examination is to be held and the name of the 

examiner will be published on the Council’s website and in local papers when they become 
available. If you have made a request to be heard (either on the Statement of Modifications or 
previously during the consultation on the Draft Charging Schedule) you will be notified 
directly. 

 
5. Further information 
 
5.1 If you have any further queries please contact Spatial Planning, Wiltshire Council on (01225) 

713223 or via email, CIL@wiltshire.gov.uk. 
 
  
 
 

Page 4



Chairman’s Announcements 
 

 

Subject: 

 
Mini Recycling Sites  
 

 
Summary of announcement: 
 

After considering comments from residents and the usage of key recycling sites, the Council 

has decided that 13 mini recycling sites will remain in place for residents to use. These sites, 

where skips will remain for the recycling of glass, cans and paper, are listed below: 

• Bradford on Avon – Sainsburys 

• Calne – Pippin Car Park 

• Chippenham – Sainsburys 

• Chippenham – Morrisons 

• Corsham – Car Park 

• Devizes – Morrisons 

• Malmesbury – Station Yard Car Park 

• Melksham – Sainsburys 

• Warminster – Morrisons 

• Royal Wootton Bassett – Borough fields 

• Salisbury – Waitrose 

• Tidworth – Station Car Park 

• Tisbury – Car Park 

. 
 
 

 

 
 

Page 5



Page 6



Chairman’s Announcements 
 

 

Garden Waste Consultation 

 

Summary of announcement: 
 

The Council faces significant financial pressures with reduced funding from central 
government, increased service demand and inflation and these pressures are likely to 
increase. One way of achieving some savings towards this is by changing the way the 
garden waste collection service is delivered at the kerbside in Wiltshire. The Council 
currently delivers a fortnightly non-chargeable kerbside garden waste collection service to 
those residents that request the service. 
 
The Council’s Cabinet agreed to undertake a public consultation exercise to gain residents’ 
views on potential future changes to the current kerbside garden waste collection service.  
The consultation runs from 1 July until the 1 September and presents residents with three 
proposals for changes to the service.  The proposed changes are: 
 

1. A three month suspension of the non-chargeable kerbside garden waste service 

with no collections taking place in December, January and February. 

2. A five month suspension of the non-chargeable kerbside garden waste service with 

no collections taking place in November, December, January, February and March. 

3. To introduce a chargeable kerbside garden waste collection service instead of the 

current non-chargeable service. 

Residents are asked to pick the one option which best meets their needs.  From 1 July you 
can find out more information and contribute to the consultation: 
 

• Online by visiting the Council’s website and following the link to public consultations 

• Online at your local library 

• By picking up a leaflet from your local library, leisure centre, council office or town 

council office.  

• By completing the form in the summer ‘Your Wiltshire’ magazine 

Leaflets will also be made available at area board meetings. 
  
Should you have any further questions which are not answered by the consultation 
documents, you can contact the council by emailing 
gardenwasteconsultation@wiltshire.gov.uk or by telephoning 0300 456 0102.  
 

 

 

Page 7



Page 8



Chairman’s Announcements 
 

 

Subject: GOV/14/05/10 Integrated Performance Report May 2014 ! 

Officer Contact Details: 
David Noyes, Director of Planning, Performance and 
Corporate Services ! 

Weblink: 
http://www.wiltshireccg.nhs.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2014/05/Paper-10-Integrated-Performance-
Report.pdf 

  

 

Summary of announcement: 
 

Performance across the urgent care system remains broadly as expected over  
recent weeks, notwithstanding a couple of areas which have not consistently  
achieved the expected targets due to spikes of activity. A&E waiting times at GWH  
remain a concern, and the CCG will be participating in the de-brief from the recent  
Emergency Care Intensive Support Team work with GWH on 16 May. Elsewhere,  
we remain engaged with our provider of NHS111 in order to rectify some of the  
recent performance shortfalls evident in the delivery of this service, albeit  
performance here overall remains very much improved from this time last year. A  
review of regional system performance over last winter took place with the NHS  
England Area Team on 30 April with lessons learnt and agreement of common  
themes and issues, which can inform planning for next year. The Wiltshire Urgent  
Care Working Group met on 1 May; this event was conducted as a workshop,  
facilitated by Wiltshire GP Dr Tim Ballard, who is Vice Chair of the Royal College of  
GPs. Representation from across the system assisted us with the distillation of  
ideas and concepts which can be further developed to bring improvement in the  
future.  
  
Some early engagement events have been held in order to start our dialogue with  
the population over the direction of travel set out in our emerging 5 year strategy.  
These have included interactions with the Wiltshire and Swindon Users Network, the  
Wiltshire Voluntary Sector Forum Network and the Potterne and surrounding villages  
Annual General Meeting. Further events with a variety of forums and groups are  
planned for the coming weeks and months, including Area Boards whenever  
possible. In order to drive ahead with delivery, in the past month our own  
Programme Governance Group have endorsed the scope and governance of our  
priority areas of programmed work moving forwards, and in very close co-operation  
with our partners in Wiltshire Council, the similar forum governing the Better Care  
Plan projects also successfully convened. On 22 April we held a workshop for our  
Governing Body members to expose them to the potential benefits of the Systems  
Thinking methodology, which Council colleagues have found to be most effective.  
We are now in the process of rolling our training in this discipline across the service  
re-design and commissioning leads within the CCG.  
  
We continue to plan ahead for the NHS England Area Team end of year assurance  
visit, which is now planned for 20 May. We further anticipate finalising the inaugural  
CCG Annual Report at the Governing Body planned for the same date.  
  

 

 

Page 9



Page 10



Army Basing Briefing for Amesbury, Pewsey, Salisbury, Tidworth and Warminster Area Boards – 

June  2014 

  

Background 

  

The government’s Army basing announcement in March 2103 advised approximately 4,300 extra 

troops moving to Wiltshire, who will be accompanied by their families, bringing the total number of 

additional personnel to 7,600.  These plans will require additional levels of infrastructure and 

services (education, leisure, transport, health and waste facilities). 

 

June 2014 Update 

  

• Following the public consultation period, between 19 February and 1 April 2014, DIO’s 

Masterplan was updated to take account of the comments received from Wiltshire Council, 

local councils, statutory bodies, stakeholders and members of the public. 

 

• The number of troops and their families due to relocate to Wiltshire is as follows: 

 

Location Troops  Spouses  
Pre-

school  

Primary 

School 

Secondary 

School  

6th 

Form 

Total 

Personnel  
SLA SFA  

Larkhill 2,053 540 

Further breakdown not yet available  

540 

Bulford 735 241 241 

Tidworth 609 100 100 

Perham 

Down 627 300 300 

Upavon 254 0 0 

Total 4,278 1,181 678 1,007 393 57 7,594 3,097 1,181 

 

• A Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) document outlines the consultation 

undertaken in preparing the Salisbury Plain Training Area Army Basing Masterplan and 

shows how the comments received have been considered. From 20 May to 17 June, both 

the Masterplan and the SCI, together with the supporting Environmental and Transport 

Assessments were available to view in local libraries in Salisbury, Amesbury, Durrington, 

Tidworth and Ludgershall as well as the Army Website. The public were invited to make 

further comments during this period.  The DIO is now updating the SCI to include any 

additional comments. 

 

• A public meeting was held on 28 May 2014 at Tidworth Garrison Theatre, at which  DIO 

presented its latest iteration of the draft Masterplan and highlighted the changes that have 

been made to it following the public consultation. The meeting was well attended and 

representatives from Wiltshire Council, the DIO and the Army were available to answer 

questions. 

 

• At the above-mentioned public meeting, concerns were raised on the transport implications 

of the proposed development at a number of locations.  DIO has identified likely 

improvements to some eight road junctions, subject to detailed planning.  A meeting with 

Wiltshire Council (members and officers), DIO and its transport consultants to clearly set out 

the particular concerns raised by local stakeholders was held on 12 June.  The issues 

identified will be dealt with during individual planning applications, which will be supported 

Page 11



by full transport assessments. Wiltshire Council and DIO continue to work closely to 

investigate satisfactory solutions to all the concerns that have been raised. 

 

• DIO incorporated further comments that were received by 17 June 2014 into the final 

version of the SCI, which will be submitted with the Masterplan for consideration by 

Wiltshire Council’s Strategic Planning Committee (SPC) in July 2014.  There will be a special 

SPC for the Army Basing Masterplan to be held on 30 July in Salisbury City Hall Auditorium, 

Malthouse Lane, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP2 7TU commencing at 1400. 

 

• The Masterplan does not replace the requirement for formal planning applications and DIO 

will address any issues of a detailed nature during the planning application stages. Planning 

applications are anticipated from September 2014 onwards, with the main construction 

programme commencing in 2016. 

 

• Wiltshire Council continues to assess the level of services required including early years, 

school, health, leisure, highways, waste and transport facilities and services, using the latest 

data from army personnel (and their families) who are due to relocate to Wiltshire.   

 

• In respect of schools, early indications suggest that Larkhill and Ludgershall will require new 

primary schools on land to be provided by the MOD, with existing Bulford primary schools 

being expanded.  New secondary school places will be required at Durrington and / or 

Amesbury as well as Tidworth / Ludgershall.  No additional classrooms will be required at 

Upavon.  Early Years and nursery provision is also being investigated. 

 

 

Page 12



Page 1 of 8 
 
 

 
 

MINUTES 
 

 
Meeting: TIDWORTH AREA BOARD 

Place: Collingbourne Ducis Village Hall, Chicks Lane, Collingbourne Ducis, 

Wiltshire, SN8 3UH 

Date:  19 May 2014 

Start Time: 7.00 pm 

Finish Time: 9.00 pm 

 

Please direct any enquiries on these minutes to:  

Kevin Fielding (Democratic Services Officer), Tel: 01249 706612 or (e-mail) 
kevin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk 

Papers available on the Council’s website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
In Attendance: 
 
Wiltshire Councillors 
Cllr Christopher Williams, Cllr Mark Connolly and Cllr Charles Howard  
 
Wiltshire Council Officers 
Mary Cullen - Community Area Manager (CAM) 
Kevin Fielding – Democratic Services Officer 
Sue Ellison – Communications Officer 
 
Town and Parish Councillors 
Tidworth Town Council – Humph Jones, Ann Birch and Corby Kemp 
Ludgershall Town Council – Owen White & Janet White  
Collingbourne Ducis Parish Council – David Paterson, Keith Cockerton 
Enford Parish Council – Anthony D’arcy-Irvine 
Everleigh Parish Council – Denis Bottomley 
Netheravon Parish Council – Ian Blair-Pulling  
 
Partners 
Wiltshire Police – Insp Christian Lange 
Police & Crime Commissioners Office – Sean Cooper 
Wiltshire Fire & Rescue Service – Mike Franklin 
Tidworth Community Area Partnership – Tony Pickernell 
Youth Services – Wendy Higginson                                          Total in attendance: 43 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



Page 2 of 8 
 
 

 

Agenda 
Item No. 

Summary of Issues Discussed and Decision 

1   Appointments 

 Election of the Chairman 
Cllr Chris Williams was elected as Chairman for the forthcoming year. 
 
Election of the Vice Chairman 
Cllr Mark Connolly was elected as Vice Chairman for the forthcoming year. 
 
Appointments to Outside Bodies and Working Groups. 
To note that appointments to outside bodies and working groups 
for the forthcoming year: 
 

• Community Area Transport Group – Cllr Mark Connolly 
 

• Shadow Campus Operations Board – Cllr Mark Connolly 
 

• Tidworth Community Area Partnership -  Cllr Chris Williams 
 

• Tidworth Leisure Centre Executive Committee – Cllr Charles Howard 
 

• Youth Advisory Group – Cllr Chris Williams 
 

• Wellington Academy Governing Body – Cllr Charles Howard 
 

2   Chairman's Welcome to WW1 themed meeting, Introductions and 
Announcements 

 The Chairman welcomed everyone to the Collingbourne Ducis Village Hall for 
the meeting of the Tidworth Area Board. He thanked Collingbourne Ducis Parish 
Council for the pre-meeting refreshments of tea/coffee and homemade cakes. 
 
The following Chairman’s announcement contained in the agenda pack was 
noted: 
 
Chairman’s Announcements: 
 
• Outcomes of the Youth Activity Review – the Chairman advised that the  
Wiltshire Council cabinet had voted to deliver funding of Youth Services 
through the Area Boards using a community based model of funding. Further 
information would follow. 

 
• No Cold Calling Zone Initiative – as covered in the agenda pack. 
 
• Army Rebasing – as covered in the agenda pack. 

Page 14



Page 3 of 8 
 
 

3   Apologies for Absence 

 Apologies for absence were received from Col James Denny – Tidworth 
Garrison Commander, Alistair Cunningham – Service Director, David Wildman – 
Chamber of Commerce and Julie Tremlin – Extended Services. 
 

4   Declarations of Interest 

 There were no declarations of interest. 
 

5   Minutes 

 Decision 
 

• The minutes of the meeting held on the 17 March 2014 were signed off 
as a correct record. 

 

• Matters Arising - there were none. 
 

6   Introducing Wiltshire Soldiers 

 The area board were given the opportunity view an exhibition and receive a 
presentation from Richard Broadhead of Wiltshire Soldiers. Wiltshire Soldiers 
aims to try and find the names of forgotten soldiers who’s names do not appear 
on any of the many war memorials across the county, it also visits local schools 
giving children a real insight into the Great War. 
 
The Chairman thanked Richard Broadhead for a very moving presentation and 
exhibition. 
 

7   Tidworth Community Area WW1 Commemorations 

 The Towns and Parishes of the community area were given the opportunity to 
update the area board and local community on their plans and ideas for the 
commemoration of WW1. 
 
Projects included: 
 

• Remembrance Orchards 

• Exhibitions of community life at the time of the Great War. 

• Remembrance collage. 

• Updating/renovation of war memorials. 
 

The Chairman thanked everybody for their presentations. 

Page 15



Page 4 of 8 
 
 

8   Letter from the Front 

 Tony Pickernell read extracts taken from several accounts of both soldiers and 
local residents based, and living in Tidworth at the beginning of World War I. 
The extracts were compiled from the Pickernell family archives. 
 

9   Community Area Transport Group - Update 

 Cllr Mark Connolly and Peter Binley - Head of Highways Asset Management & 
Communications, Wiltshire Council. 
 
Points made by Cllr Mark Connolly: 
 

• That the Community Area Transport Group still had £11,000 to fund 
transport related projects. 
 

• That town and parish council’s had been asked to put forward small 
highways related schemes for consideration. 
 

 
Joint Strategic Assessment – The Transport Priorities from the JSA event were 
presented again to ensure the area board agreed them as priorities for the 
transport group. These were agreed. 
 

• Maintenance of condition of Highway infrastructure, frequency of repairs 
to pot holes and clearance of drainage ditches and gullies. 
 

• Better cycle connections between communities. 
 

• Issue of HGVs using the A338/A346/A342/A345 – traffic controls and 
improved utilisation of A34. 
 

• Speeding – particularly in villages and residential areas/schools. 
 

• Increased traffic due to Army Rebasing both within the local community 
and out-commuting. 
 
 

Highway repairs 
 
The CATG had considered the schemes identified for 2014/15. However the 
CATG wanted to prioritise two different areas in Enford and Ludgershall owing to 
recent weather damage. 

 
Points made by Peter Binley: 
 

• That Wiltshire Council were actively working on the backlog of road 

Page 16



Page 5 of 8 
 
 

repairs across the county. 
 

• Many roads had suffered severe water damage due to the very wet 
Winter period. 

 

• Wiltshire were very keen to know where its residents felt its roads should 
be repaired, that this could be fed back via the CAT-G meetings. 
 
 

Peter Binley undertook to assess the new proposed sites and feedback to the 
CATG. 

 
The Chairman thanked Cllr Connolly and Peter Binley for their updates. 
 

10   Updates from Town and Parish Councils, the Police, the Army, NHS, TCAP and 
other Partners 

 Wiltshire Police – Insp Christian Lange 
The written update tabled at the meeting was noted.  
 
Points made included: 

 

• Local Police teams were expecting a busy Summer period, with lots of 
public events to police. 
 

 
Wiltshire Fire & Rescue Service – Mike Franklin 
 
Points made included: 
 

• That the issues preventing the publishing of the written reports was nearly 
resolved. 

 

• That a statement concerning the merging of Wiltshire and Dorset Fire & 
Rescue Services would soon be in the public domain. 

 
 
Tidworth Garrison – Dennis Bottomley 
 
Points made included: 
 

• Area 19 – Service families accommodation, 320 house to be built, due to 
start early 2015. 
 

• Best of British polo event – Sunday 1 June. 
 

• Rundle Cup polo match – Saturday 12 July. 

Page 17



Page 6 of 8 
 
 

 
 

Ludgershall Town Council – Owen White 
 

• The new Ludgershall Town Council hub was now operational. 
 
 

Tidworth Town Council – Humph Jones 
Points made included: 
 

• The next Tidworth Artisan Farmer’s Market would be held on Friday 7 
June at Station Road, Tidworth. 

 
 
Collingbourne Ducis Parish Council  
 
Points made included: 
 

• That the Parish Council were looking to appoint a new Parish Clerk. 
 

 
Wellington Academy – Mike Milner 
 
Points made included: 
 

• That the Academy was going through a period of change with staffing, 
this had been highlighted on social media sites. Parents of pupils had 
been sent a written update highlighting the Academy’s position on the 
recent events raised through social media. 

 
 
Tidworth Community Area Partnership – Tony Pickernell 
 
Points made included: 
 

• The area awards had now been held, thanks to all concerned.  
 

• A Blue Light day was planned for Tuesday 24 June. 
 
 
Youth Service – Wendy Higginson 
 
Points made included: 
 

• That is was business as usual despite the planned changes to Youth 
Service. 
 

• That planning for this year’s Summer programme was ongoing. 

Page 18



Page 7 of 8 
 
 

 
 
A338 Action Group – Derek Booth 
 
Points made included: 
 

• That the siting of a distribution centre for a major retailer at the Solstice 
Business Park, Amesbury would add to further traffic issues on the A338 
other associated roads in the area. 

 
The Chairman thanked everybody for their updates. 
 

11   Community Area Grants 

 The Area Board members were asked to consider the following grant 
applications: 
 
Community Area Grants 
 
Decision  
Phoenix Hall, Netheravon - upgrade of audio-visual equipment awarded 
£3,523.50 
Reason 
This application meets the 2014/15 grant criteria. This is a capital project, 
the organisation applying is a not for profit community organisation, 
match funding has been secured and the project will have community 
benefit. 
 
Decision 
Ludgershall Memorial Hall - CCTV equipment awarded £1094.50 
Reason 
The application meets the 2013/14 grant criteria. This is a capital project, 
the organisation applying is a not for profit community organisation and 
match funding is in place. 
 
Decision 
Castledown Bowls Club - Club shed awarded £950 
Reason 
The application meets the 2014/15 grant criteria. The organisation applying 
is a not for profit community organisation, this is a capital project, match 
funding is in place and the project can be seen to have community benefit. 

  
 

Member led applications 
 
Young people’s summer activities programme awarded £1,946 
Reason 

Page 19



Page 8 of 8 
 
 

The project is to support TCAP Youth and Young People’s Group which is 
seeking funding of £1946 to enable the development of a summer activity 
programme for young people across our community area.   
 
TCAP first tranche funding awarded £3,000 
Reason 
The project is to provide Tidworth Community Area Partnership with   

          the first tranche of its funding from the area board for the financial year 
2014/15. This will enable TCAP to continue to operate effectively and to 
support the work of the area board. 
 

12   Date of Next Meeting 

 The next meeting of the Tidworth Area Board will be on 21 July 2014 at Enford 
Village Hall. 
 

13   Close 
 

Page 20



Wiltshire Police 

1. Neighbourhood Policing 
 
Sector Commander – Inspector Christian Lange
Team Sgt: Martin Phipps 

  
 Tidworth Town 
 Beat Manager – PC Dav
 PCSO – Aaron Heath 
  
 Ludgershall and Rural 
 Beat Manager – PC Tim Bunt
 PCSO – Maria Downham
 PCSO Rosie Smith 
  
  
 

2. NPTs - Current Priorities & Consultation Opportunities:
 
Up-to-date details about Neighbourhood Policing Teams including team membership, 
current priorities and forthcoming community consultation events can be found on our 
Wiltshire Police Website.  
 
+ Visit the new and improved website at: 
 

3. Performance and Other Local Issues
 
The Tidworth Neighbourhood policing Team were delighted to have been nominated as 
the Wiltshire NPT of the year. They were awarded the runner up certificate at an award 
ceremony last month. PCSO 
year and was very happy with her runner up award. It means a great deal to the team to 
have their hard work recognised by members of the public.
 
The crime levels in the Tidworth Community area would be 
relatively stable. Whilst the figures below indicate a rise in non
the past year, the last three months have seen improvements with fewer offences being 
reported. 
 
 
 
 

Crime and Community Safety Briefing Paper
Tidworth Community Area Board

July 2014
 

Wiltshire Police - 170 years of public service 

Neighbourhood Policing  

Inspector Christian Lange 
  

David Griffith 
 

Rural  
Tim Bunt 

Maria Downham 

Current Priorities & Consultation Opportunities: 

Neighbourhood Policing Teams including team membership, 
priorities and forthcoming community consultation events can be found on our 

 

+ Visit the new and improved website at: www.wiltshire.police.uk   

and Other Local Issues 

Tidworth Neighbourhood policing Team were delighted to have been nominated as 
the Wiltshire NPT of the year. They were awarded the runner up certificate at an award 

 Maria Downham was also nominated as the PCSO of the 
year and was very happy with her runner up award. It means a great deal to the team to 
have their hard work recognised by members of the public. 

The crime levels in the Tidworth Community area would be best described as being 
the figures below indicate a rise in non-domestic burglaries over 

the past year, the last three months have seen improvements with fewer offences being 

Crime and Community Safety Briefing Paper 
Community Area Board 

July 2014 

1

 
 
 
 

Neighbourhood Policing Teams including team membership, 
priorities and forthcoming community consultation events can be found on our 

Tidworth Neighbourhood policing Team were delighted to have been nominated as 
the Wiltshire NPT of the year. They were awarded the runner up certificate at an award 

Maria Downham was also nominated as the PCSO of the 
year and was very happy with her runner up award. It means a great deal to the team to 

best described as being 
domestic burglaries over 

the past year, the last three months have seen improvements with fewer offences being 

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



Wiltshire Police - 170 years of public service 2

 

 

Anti-social behaviour In Ludgershall had been one of the priorities from the NPT. I am 
please to report that at the last tasking group meeting it was decided that the problems 
had improved greatly and the priority could now be signed off. The new priority for the 
team is to deal with some immerging drug supply issues in Ludgershall. 
 
PS Martin Phipps, who has managed the Neighbourhood Policing Team in the Tidworth 
Community Area for the past 18 months, has now completed 30 years loyal service with 
Wiltshire Police and will retire in September. I am sure that you will join me in thanking 
him for all his hard work and will wish him well for his retirement. Martin will be replaced 
by PS Andrea Faircloth who will join the team in mid August 2014. 
 
  
 
Christian Lange  Sector Commander for Amesbury and Tidworth 

 

 

CRIME & DETECTIONS (June  2013  to June  2014 compared to previous year) 

 

EL Tidworth NPT 

Crime   Detections* 

12 Months to 

June 2013 

12 Months to 

June 2014 

Volume 

Change 

% 

Change 
  

12 Months to 

June 2013 

12 Months to 

June 2014 

Victim Based Crime  583 593 +10 +1.7%   27% 24% 

Domestic Burglary 12 10 -2 -16.7%   8% 10% 

Non Domestic Burglary 55 71 +16 +29.1%   2% 0% 

Vehicle Crime 47 61 +14 +29.8%   4% 10% 

Criminal Damage & Arson 115 101 -14 -12.2%   32% 19% 

Violence Against The Person 190 173 -17 -8.9%   47% 43% 

ASB Incidents (YTD) 456 269 -187 -41.0%       

  

* Detections include both Sanction Detections and Local Resolutions 

 

Page 22


	Agenda
	1 Chairman's Announcements, Welcome and Introductions
	2014.11 CIL Appendix
	2014.10 - Mini Recycling Sites
	2014.09 Garden Waste Collection
	2014.08 CCG Integrated Performance report
	Army Rebasing update

	4 Minutes
	9 Updates from Town and Parish Councils, the Police, the Army, NHS, TCAP and other Partners

